
Urban Renewal Agency Board of Directors Agenda 
City of North Plains 

NORTH PLAINS SENIOR CENTER 
31450 NW Commercial 

Monday, August 17, 2015 
7:00 P.M. 

Special Session 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. ROLL CALL 
 
3. CONSENT AGENDA:  (The items on the Consent Agenda are normally 

considered in a single motion. Any item may be removed for separate 
consideration upon request by any member of the Council.) 

 
 A.  Approval of Monday, August 17, 2015 Special Session agenda 

B.  Approval of minutes of 07/20/15 Special Session URA Board of Directors 
 

4.  PUBLIC COMMENT: (Persons wishing to speak on matters not on the agenda 
may be recognized at this time.  Speakers must complete a “Public Comment 
Registration form” on the information table and return it to the City Recorder.  
You are not required to give your address when speaking to the City Council, 
only your name.  Presentations are limited to five minutes.) 

 
5. PUBLIC HEARING: 
 None Scheduled  

 
6. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
  
Adjourn to Executive Session under Oregon 192.660.2(e) to conduct deliberations with 
persons designated by the governing body to negotiate real property transactions. 
 
7. NEW BUSINESS: 
 None scheduled  
 
8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 

A. Discussion regarding purchasing options for Vanderzanden Property on 
Commercial Street 

 
9. ADJOURNMENT 
 

***** 
North Plains Urban Renewal Agency meetings are accessible for disabled individuals.  
The Agency will also endeavor to provide services for persons with impaired hearing or 
vision and other services, if requested, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.  To 
obtain services, please call City Hall at (503) 647-5555. 

***** 

__________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEW AGENCY BOARD AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, August 17, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 1 of 13



City of North Plains 
Urban Renewal Agency (URA) Board of Directors 

Monday, July 20, 2015, Special Session 
MINUTES 

 
1. Call to Order:  Chair Kindel called the meeting to order at 8:00 p.m. 
 
2. ROLL CALL: 

Directors present: 
Chair Robert Kindel, Jr., Directors: David Hatcher, Teri Lenahan, Charlynn 
Newton, Sandi King, Sherrie Simmons, Scott Whitehead 
 
Staff present:  Public Works Director/Interim City Manager Blake Boyles, City 
Recorder Margaret Reh 
 

3. CONSENT AGENDA 
A.  Special Session Agenda Approval-July 20, 2015 
B. Approval of minutes of 06/15/15 Special Session URA Board of Directors 

 
Motion by Lenahan. Seconded by Simmons to approve the Consent Agenda.  The motion 
was approved unanimously. 
 
4.  PUBLIC COMMENT 
 None were forthcoming 
 
5. PUBLIC HEARING 
 None Scheduled 

6. NEW BUSINESS 
 None scheduled 
 
7. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 

A. Discussion regarding purchasing options for Vanderzanden Property on 
Commercial Street 

 
Blake presented the staff report which included funding options and a report from Finance 
Manager Rachael Lembo which was included in the Agenda Packet. The City Council had 
requested staff to report on the estimated financial burden the City would incur if the one 
acre piece of property on Commercial Street, east of 311th, were purchased and present it 
to the URA Board. It was determined that the URA has capacity to repay the loan and so 
does the General Fund. The report showed comparisons of other loans the City currently 
has. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding the role the City would have in developing property that they 
may purchase. The Board also discussed the rezoning of the property and the history of 
the different zoning it has been through. 
 

__________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEW AGENCY BOARD AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, August 17, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 2 of 13



John Rankin, Land Use Attorney representing the Vanderzanden property, addressed the 
Council and introduced the land owners to the Board. Rankin presented a history of the 
property and the zoning changes the property has gone through. He also explained the 
difficulties the property owners have had in trying to sell the property historically. Discussion 
ensued regarding various development options-including apartments, condos, and high 
density single family dwellings. There was also discussion regarding the property being 
rezoned back to commercial which could allow for commercial development, mixed use or 
possibly a new city hall building. Being zoned commercial would be more in line with the 
vision of the community to have commercial area continue and tie Glencoe with 
Commercial and the downtown area. The existing zoning of R-2.5 has made this piece of 
property an island on the zoning map. There is a risk, if the City were to take this property 
on, however Hatcher feels it could be a short-term risk. It could end up being an investment 
to tie the property in with the original vision. 
 
Rankin stated the asking price for the property is $495,000 for the property. Rankin stated 
he had said the property could go to the city for $475,000 as he stated in an e-mail he sent 
to Blake Boyles. Discussion ensued regarding fluctuations in the market and issues that 
arose with prior interested buyers that prevented them from moving forward with the 
property. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding options the URA can take regarding this property. It can be 
purchased; it could be rezoned to commercial; rezoned by the property owner with the City 
waiving the rezoning fee; rezoned if the purchase from the city is imminent; it could be 
financed by a loan; a down payment with a transfer of ownership-the city could make 
payments to the owner until there is more money in the URA fund or it could be dropped 
altogether. 
 
The Board decided they will need a work session to discuss the options that are on the 
table regarding this property. The URA work session has been scheduled for August 17, 
2015 at 7:00 p.m. at the North Plains Senior Center to discuss options and make a decision 
regarding the direction the URA wants to take with the property. 
 
Rankin wanted the Board to know that they will be continuing to market the property while 
the URA are considering their options. 
 
8. ADJOURNMENT 

Chair Kindel adjourned the meeting at 8:45 p.m. 
 
 
________________________________ 
Robert Kindel, Jr., URA Chairperson 
 
 
_________________________________ Date approved ____________________  
Margaret L. Reh, City Recorder 

__________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEW AGENCY BOARD AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, August 17, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 3 of 13



NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY 
EXECUTIVE SESSION MINUTES 

 
Monday, August 17, 2014 @ 7:00 p.m. 

MEETING DATE AND TIME 
 

North Plains Senior Center 
LOCATION 

 

THIS MEETING IS CALLED TO ORDER UNDER AUTHORITY OF: 

 192.660(2)(a) Employment of public officer, staff member or individual (attorney) 

 192.660(2)(b) Discipline of Public Officers and Employees 

 192.660(2)(d) Labor Negotiations 

 192.660(2)(e) Real Property Transactions 

 192.660(2)(f) Exempt Public Records 

 192.690(2)(g) Trade Negotiations 

 192.660(2)(h) Legal Counsel 

 192.660(2)(i) Employee Evaluations 

 192.660(2)(j) Public Investments 

 
PURSUANT TO OREGON REVISED STATUTES, 

NO INFORMATION FROM THIS SESSION SHALL BE DISCLOSED BY THE NEWS MEDIA. 
 

 
 
 
 
In Attendance:    
 Elected Officials:    
  URA Board Chair Robert Kindel Director Hatcher Director King 
  Director Lenahan Director Newton Director Simmons 
  Director Whitehead   
 Staff: Blake Boyles Margaret Reh  
     
 City Attorney:    
     
 Consultants:    
     
 Media:    
     
Called to Order at: ______________ Adjourned at: _______________ 
     
Specific Issue Discussed: Vanderzanden property options 

 
__________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEW AGENCY BOARD AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, August 17, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 4 of 13



 

Agenda Item No: 7A    

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:  July 20, 2015 (Memo submitted for 7/20/15 URA Meeting) 

To:  Urban Renewal Agency Board of Directors 

From:  Interim City Manager Blake Boyles 

Subject: Rankin Vanderzanden Property 

 
Request:  URA Directors to further discuss the possibility of purchasing a parcel of land 
in the best interest of the URA. 
 
Background: City Council viewed an appraisal submitted for the Vanderzanden 
property at the September 15, 2014 Council meeting. The property in question (Tax lots 
1N31DA3101 & 1N31DA3102) was once zoned commercial but changed some years 
back to R-2.5. 
 
Council requested staff to report on the estimated financial burden the City would incur 
if the one acre piece of property on Commercial Street, east of 311th, were purchased. 
It was determined that the URA has capacity to repay the loan and so does the General 
Fund. 
 
Rodney Linz, 42315 NW Woollen Road, Banks, Oregon, son-in-law of Frank 
Vanderzanden, have been in discussions regarding this property with the City Council 
and the URA Board. Linz has given a history of the property since the purchase of the 
property back in 1968 and 1971 to both groups. A hypothetical commercial appraisal for 
this property had been submitted to the Board previously and is included again in the 
Agenda Packet for tonight’s meeting. 
 
One option is to buy it, change the zoning and then resell it as commercial property. It 
could be used as an economic development tool as it is centrally located. This property 
could be critical to expanding the downtown area. Council wants to hear what the 
Planning Commission has to say about this property and the uses for it. This could be 
discussed again after further revisions on the Comprehensive Plan have been made. 
 
The URA has approx. $310k in opening fund balance, therefore a loan would be 
necessary to purchase this property. While the City’s General Fund has sufficient cash 
to loan, a loan was not budgeted in FY15-16 and could not be made this year. Finance 
Manager Rachael Lembo obtained a loan proposal from Premier Community Bank 

__________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEW AGENCY BOARD AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, August 17, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 5 of 13



which has a reasonable interest rate. The loan proposal is attached. Also attached is a 
comparison of debt the URA has incurred since its inception.    
 
Fiscal Impact:  To be determined by URA if interested in lot. 
 
Environmental Issues:  No environmental issues are associated with this item. 
 
Recommendation:  For URA to decide agency needs for area in question. 
 
Attachments: Loan Proposal from Premier Community Bank 
 URA Loan Comparison 

__________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEW AGENCY BOARD AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, August 17, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 6 of 13



__________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEW AGENCY BOARD AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, August 17, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 7 of 13



__________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEW AGENCY BOARD AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, August 17, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 8 of 13



__________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEW AGENCY BOARD AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, August 17, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 9 of 13



City of North Plains
URA land purchase ‐ loan comparison
June 10, 2015

Loaned by Loan start Loan end
Loan 
period

 Loan 
Amount  Interest Rate  Interest 

 Issuance 
Costs   Total cost   Cost/$/yr 

 Est Annual 
Cost   Notes 

Previous debt: 
Kaybern lot Premier Bank 2/12/2009 2/1/2014 5           131,750$        4.25%, variable 28,002$     28,002$     0.043$       6,000$         1, 2
Yellow House Premier Bank 8/2/2012 2/1/2014 1.5       90,000$          4.5%, variable 5,368$        5,368$        0.040$       13,000$       2

Current debt: 
Glencoe Road LOCAP 3/14/2011 12/1/2030 20        275,000$        3‐5.7% 173,993$   13,039$   187,032$   0.034$       22,000$       3
Kaybern/Yellow House General Fund 1/1/2014 1/1/2024 10        185,000$        3.25% 34,652$     ‐$          34,652$     0.019$       22,000$      

Potential debt:
new property Premier Bank 15        292,500$        2.9%, variable 82,124$     1,463$     83,586$     0.019$       24,000$       4

1 ‐ small principal payments, balloon payment due after 5 years
2 ‐ issuance costs could not be identified
3 ‐ no prepayment until Dec 2019
4 ‐ three consecutive 5‐year loans, interest varies upon renewal

__________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEW AGENCY BOARD AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, August 17, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 10 of 13



__________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEW AGENCY BOARD AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, August 17, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 11 of 13



__________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEW AGENCY BOARD AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, August 17, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 12 of 13



CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA STATEMENT 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA DATE: January 17, 2006 
 
 

TO: Mayor and City Council 
 

FROM: City Manager 
 

SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 345 approving change in comprehensive plan designation and 
zone change for property owned by Frank Vanderzanden. 

 

 
HISTORY:  The city originally received an application for zone change from C-2 to R-5 and 
change in comprehensive plan designation from Commercial (COMM) to Low/Medium 
Residential (R-5) on the subject property.  The Planning Commission conducted the public 
hearing and at the end of the hearing recommended to the City Council that the zoning be changed 
to C-1, General Commercial and the comprehensive plan designation remain Commercial 
(COMM). 
 
The recommendation was to be considered by the City Council but the applicant amended the 
request to change the zoning to R-2.5, Multi-Family Residential and the comprehensive plan 
designation to High Density Residential (R-2.5).  The council referred the amended request back 
to the Planning Commission. 
 
The Planning Commission on December 14, 2005 considered the amended request and 
recommended the R-2.5 zoning and comprehensive plan designation to the Council with the 
condition that future development of the property be subject to Design Review. 

 
PROPOSAL:  Conduct a public hearing on the amended application. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT: None identified. 
 

POSITIVE IMPACTS:  Policy decision. 
 

NEGATIVE IMPACTS: Policy decision. 
 

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the City Council conduct the public hearing 
and place Ordinance No. 343 on first reading. 

__________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEW AGENCY BOARD AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, August 17, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 13 of 13


	3A 081715 URA Agenda
	3B 072015 URA Board Minutes
	6A EXECUTIVE SESSION TOPIC Real Estate Vanderzanden
	7A Memo Rankin Vanderzanden Property Discussion
	7A1 Urban Renewal loan proposal
	7A2 URA loan comparison



